Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
September 23, 2024

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, September 23, 2024 to transact business. Mr. Jordan called
the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari
Henning answered the roll call. Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning
Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Jody Wilson, Scott Tarvin, Ashley Lemaster,
Roberta Dial, Pat Fisher, Tom Fisher, and Ed Boll.

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2024 regular meeting. Mr. Henning second. All yeas.
Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the September 20, 2024 special meeting. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation
status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to
actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.

Mr. Jordan motioned to approve the attached bills. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Jordan discussed a letter from Clermont County indicating that Concord-Hennings Mill Road would be closed from 8 am
to 4 pm on October 3" (Duke Energy utility upgrades).

Two bids were submitted for the Emergency Services Building Kitchen Renovation. Both bids were close. One bid had to
be rejected due to the lack of a bond. Mr. Henning motioned to accept the bid of Axcraft LLC, 4026 Bach Buxton Road,
Batavia, Ohio for the Emergency Services Building Kitchen Renovation in the amount of $82,870.00. Mr. Bainum second.

All yeas.

Mr. Jordan introduced Resolution No. 2024-18, a Resolution approving the Williamsburg JEDD contract amendment
indicating if the CIC no longer owns property in the district the Village and Township will make their board member
selections. Mr. Jordan motioned to adopt Resolution 2024-18 Resolution Approving the Williamsburg JEDD Contract
Amendment. Mr. Henning second. All yeas.

Zoning Report
Mr. Tatman indicated he met with Travis Fisher in regard to the property at Half Acre and Old SR 32 (Clear Mountain Food

Park). A zoning certificate will be sent to move the old stage/storage building on the property. Mr. Tatman said Mr. Fisher
indicated he had or would talk to residents in the area where there had been complaints in the past. Mr. Jordan said he was
talking to Mr. Fisher this coming Thursday and may bring Fiscal Officer Lefferson. Mr. Tatman stated he would be at the
Clermont County Planning Commission Meeting tomorrow night (September 24™). He is looking at October 15" for the
Township Zoning Commission public hearing at the firehouse from 6 to 9 pm on the alternative energy resolution. The
Township Zoning Commission public hearing for the zone change request from the CIC (Clermont County Community
Improvement Corporation) is scheduled for October 17%. There would be a forthcoming Trustee meeting to review the
hearing recommendations. Mr. Jordan asked Mr. Tatman to continue to work on violations of the grass ordinance and to look
at outsourcing the mowing and assessing taxes.

Cemetery and Maintenance Report
Mr. Tatman discussed concerns raised about kids waiting for the school bus standing in the intersection with no lights at
West Fork Ridge Drive and East Fork Valley Drive. He said we could look at possible grants to help with any costs. Mr.
Jordan said this is something we need to look into. Mr. Henning asked if there were poles in the area for lights. Mr. Tatman
said no. All the Township’s current street lights were placed on existing poles. Mr. Tatman asked if he should check with
Duke. Mr. Henning said yes. A comment was made that we might have to poll some of the residents. He asked if we want
to look at a concrete pad, there are no sidewalks. Mr. Henning asked if there was space for it. Mr. Tatman said we would
have to talk to attorneys about sidewalks with easements. Mr. Tatman said he would start with Duke. Mr. Tatman reported
that prep work for blacktopping at the cemetery was happening Thursday and Friday with paving October 3 or 4™, As for
blacktopping the roads Sally Drive and Coon Avenue are scheduled for 2025 at an estimated cost of $27,000.00. Mr. Tatman
said we spoke about looking at Ashton Road before and that he requested a price from the County and is waiting to hear
back.

Emergency Services Report
Chief McCarthy said he had nothing to report at this meeting.




Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
September 23, 2024

Public Participation
Ms. Lemaster of the Clermont County Public Library provided some updates to services and events at the Williamsburg
branch summarized below:
e Notary service is now available. Two notaries on staff. Best to give them a call to make sure one is available.
Hallow-Read is a kid’s reading challenge program October 1-31
Senior Café, 2" Wednesday each month. Seniors meet new people, have snacks and games.
Storytime for kids is every Wednesday 10:30 am
Historic Haunting, local spooky ghost stories, October 22" 6:00 pm
More info ClermontLibrary.org

Mr. and Mrs. Fisher indicated they rode toward Hillsboro to observe solar panels and were continuing to look into them. Mr.
Boll said in regard to the bus stop issue you could look at reflective cones due to safety issues. Mr. Jordan said it is a safety
issue and we have to take a look at options. Mrs. Dial commented that previous meeting minutes said that a lot of letters (to
the Ohio Power Siting Board) were form letters but did not reflect she said the majority were from out of the area and
apartments or non-property owners. Mrs. Dial asked what the term “we” meant in the previous minutes. Mr. Jordan said his
use of “we” referred to the Trustees. Mr. Jordan provided some comments on solar summarized as the Township is not
against residential solar, not in favor of excluding or freezing everything, and in favor of commercial uses like the Cincinnati
Z00 has done. Mr. Henning said his previous comment about solar “snuck up on us” referred to when Savion came in, about
2020, there was not solar going on and there were not regulations. Mr. Henning indicated the minutes were not a word-for-
word record. Mrs. Dial asked Mr. Lefferson if he attended the Ohio Power Siting Board hearing. Mr. Lefferson said he did
not, but because he indicated previously that he would is why at the last Township Meeting he stated that in light of new
information he did not believe it would be worth it. That new information being that the parties had reached an agreement
and the hearing would be a short formality. Mr. Lefferson stated that the hearing started at 10:00 am and was over at 10:16
am. Prior to the hearing, a letter from the Township had been sent to the Ohio Power Siting Board. Mr. Henning said our
attorney advised us against freezing all solar and that the Township was following that advice. Mrs. Dial asked about the
land we (the Township) bought at SR 32 and Half Acre. Mr. Jordan clarified that the CIC purchased the land not the
Township. Mr. Henning said it was bought for industrial use. Mrs. Dial was concerned about a potential new housing effect
on the hospital. She indicated she worked at Clermont Mercy and it was already overcrowded. Ms. Wilson brought up the
Zoning Commission Public Hearing and indicated the resolution (alternative energy) is on the Township website. She
indicated there was a lot she was concerned about with the resolution. Ms. Wilson expressed concerns that certain comments
were not reflected in previous minutes. She presented the Trustees and Fiscal Officer with a question-and-answer page from
the State of Ohio Auditors Office on what format the minutes of a township trustees’ meeting have to take to satisfy public
record keeping statutes and read through the answer. Ms. Wilson referred to Ohio Revised Code 121.22 which references
public meetings. Mr. Lefferson indicated a key phrase in the Auditor’s comments is the minutes are to include the rationale
for decisions. Ms. Wilson said the meetings should be on audio or video and that the citizens want them recorded. Mr.
Lefferson and the Trustees said they would review the Q and A presented and discuss at the next meeting.

Mr. Bainum said Trick-or-Treat would be 6:00 to 8:00 pm on October 31, 2024. Mr. Bainum said there was a Clermont
County Township Association Meeting this coming Thursday.

In reference to an earlier comment about gathering information from the minutes, Mr. Henning said the minutes are not
posted until approved.

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:39 p.m. Mr. Henning second. All
eas.

Fiscal Officer Chairperson



